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UNITED STAT ES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS: Jon Leibowitz, Chairman
J. ThomasRosch
Edith Ramirez
Julie Brill

In the Matter of
DOCKET NO. C-4337
KOBY BROWN, individually, and doing
business as DERMARPS,

and GREGORY W. PEARSON, individ ually,
and dang business & DERMAPPS.
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COMPLAINT

The Federl Trade Commissin, havingreason to believe that KobBrown and Gegory
W. Peason (“respondents?)individually and doingousiness as DERMAPPRBave violatd the
provisions d the Federal Trade Commission Act, and it appearing to the Conmission thet this
proceeding is in the public interest, dleges:

1. Respondent KobBrown (“Brown”) is the develope and aseller ormarkeer, of a
mobile softwareapplication ched “AcneApp.” At all times relevat to thiscomplaint, Bown,
individually orin concert with athe's, formulated, directed, controlled, or paticipated in the acts
or practices dleged in this ompaint. His prindpal office or place of business s located in
Houdon, Texas.

2. Respondent Ggary W. Peason (“Peason”)is a licensedrad boardeetified
dermaologist, and aeller ormarkeer of amobile softwarepplication ched “AcneApp.” At
all times relevat to thiscomplaint, Pearson, individualer in conert with others,drmulated,
directed, controlled, or paticipated in theacts a practices dleged in this ompgaint. His
principal office or place of business & located in Hougon, Texas.

3. Respondents Bwn and Paaon havedevelopd, labeled, dvertised, ppmoted, offeed
for sde, sold, and distributed AcA@p to consumers, itheding teas, throudp the iTunes Store,
an eletronic retail platform opeated by Apple, hc., from at least Septembg24, 2009 and
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continuing theedter. FFom September 1, 2009 dugh March 15, 2011, thereere
approximatelyl1,600 downloads of AeApp.

4. AcneApp is a “deice” within the meanin@f Sections 12 and 15 tie Felerd Trade
Commssion Act.

5. The &ts and pretices ofrespondsts, as allegd heein, havebeen in olaffecting
commerce, as “commerce’ is defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Conmission Act.

6. Respondents havdisseminated oratised to beisseminated adviessements for
AcneApp throudn the iTunes store, ihading, but not limited to, the advertisement in the
attached Bxhibit A. This advertisement contains thefollowing staements and depictions

Pre-Download Advertisement: (Exhibit A - website pint scre@ captue)

Onsaeen: New York Times:
Deember30, 2009 “Retter Skin to the Touch?
Camille Sweeney
“... a Houston dermatolagt has bpassed the
hand-hé&l gadget and trid to harnes the poweof
in-offi ce acnetreatmentsin amore familiar form:
the iPhone or iPod Touch.”

FOX News:

Januay 12, 2009 “Can iPhone Applitan Treat
Your Acne? — Ned Hibberd

“... lf esteem emergency? Theseflashing lights
maybe their slvation.”

iTunes REVIEWS [Selected and featured by respondents]
. “This app is problly the best thingver
to surface. i've (dc) had problems with my
skin for yeas. Acneapp is egyto use and
you can useit any time of theday. My skin
started to clar dter thefirst wee& and it's
noticable ¢ic). Ive useal pro ativ (sic),
roacutane(sic) and evey other skin
product but this is trulamazing.”(Austrdia)

. “1 will have to say tha | was sleptical at first
but an anazedby theresuts of really
dedicating time to this.” (US)

. “l was very
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peoples’ inseurities, but it works! Malye
thebest gpp I've baught!” (US)

. “Hormones @ crazy when yur (sic)pregrant
but you cant use chmicals to dryup your
breakoutd.] [T]his gpis thesdution!” (US)

. This is the best mondyhave ger spat].]
[1]t works amazing for mel.] [A]lready seeng
the diffeeence in 2 dag. L stops me form (sic)
getting spots anceduce the rednss of the
presat acne It's a gtta buyfor people
suferingwith acne 5 stas:D (United Kingdom)

IMPORTANT STUFF:
This gop was ceveloped by adematologist.

A studypublished bythe Bitish Journal of
Dermatology showed blue and red light treatments
eliminated p-ane bateria (amajor case of ane)

and reluces skin blemishes B¥%%. Studies showed
that light treatments wer almost twice s efiective

as benzolyperoxide, the main ingdient in Proatv
and othecommon ovethe-®munter blemish tréments.

INSTRUCTIONS:

Begin by choosinga light from the tab babelow.
Blue & Red alternaing light is the recommendeoption.

Rest the iPhone a@st your skin’s aoce-pone
areas for 2 minutes daily to improve skin health
without presaiption drugs.

Blue Light: fights bactea.
Red Light: helps hal skin.

* * *

This app is for etertainment purposeonlyand
is not inended ér treament of anydisease or
medical ondition.

© Copyight DermApps 2002010. All Rights Reserde
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AcneApp. Acnetheapy without risky medications

7. Throudh the means d@eribed in Pagaph 6, espondents havepesentd, expresshor
by implication, that AcneApp ismaeffective teatmentér ame.

8. Throudh the means &eribed in Pagaph 6, espondents havepresentd,
expresslyor byimplication, that theypossessed andlied upon agasonhkle basis that
substantiated the peesatation set forth in Paragph 7, athe time the regsentdon was
made.

9. In truth and in fact, respondentsdid nat possess ad rey upon areasmnable basis
that substantiated thepresatation set forth in Paragph 7, athe time the re@sentfion
was made Therdore, the represetation set forth in Paragph 8 vas, and is, iae or
mislealing.

10.  Through the means deribed in Pagaph 6, espondents havepesentd, expresslyr
by implication, that a studgublished bythe Bitish Journal of Bermaology proves that blueral
red light therapysuch as that prided byAcneApp is an efiective treament for aae.

11. Intruth and in fag the studypublished bythe Bitish Journal of Bermédology does not
prove thablue and rd light theapysuch as that prvided byAcneApp is an efedive treament
for acne. Therefore, the represertation set forth in Paragraph 10 was, ard is, false a mislealing.

12. The a&ts and pretices ofrespondasts as allegd in this complaint constitute unfair or
deceptive acts a practices, and themaking of false advertisements in or aff ecting commerce, in
violation of Sections 5(a)a 12 of the Edenl Trade Commissin Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 45(and
52.

THERE FORE, the Felerd TradeCommession, thighirteenth dayf Odober, 2011, ha
issued this compaint against respondents

By the Commis®n.

Donald S. Clark
Secreary
SEAL
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